
AGENDA 
MIDDLESEX-LONDON BOARD OF HEALTH  

Finance & Facilities Committee 
 

50 King Street, London 
Middlesex-London Health Unit – Room 3A 

Thursday, October 31, 2019 
 9:00 a.m. 

 

 

 
1. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – September 5, 2019 

 
4. NEW BUSINESS  
 

4.1 2020 Budget – Program Budgeting and Marginal Analysis (PBMA) Disinvestments  

(Report No. 033-19FFC) 

4.2 Proposal to Draw Down Reserve Funds (Report No. 034-19FFC) 

4.3 Policy Review (Report No. 035-19FFC)  

4.4 Q3 Variance (Report No. 032-19FFC) 

 

 
5. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

5.1 Next meeting: Thursday, December 5, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. Room 3A 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



 

PUBLIC MINUTES 
FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE 

50 King Street, London 
Middlesex-London Health Unit 

Thursday, September 5, 2019    9:00 a.m. 
 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:     Ms. Maureen Cassidy 

Ms. Trish Fulton 

 Ms. Tino Kasi  

Mr. Matt Reid (Chair) 

     

REGRETS:   Ms. Kelly Elliott 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Mr. Ian Peer, Board of Health  

  Dr. Christopher Mackie, Secretary-Treasurer 

   Ms. Lynn Guy, Executive Assistant to the Medical Officer of Health 

(Recorder) 

   Ms. Laura Di Cesare, Director, Corporate Services 

   Mr. Brian Glasspoole, Manager Finance 

   Ms. Nicole Gauthier, Manager Risk and Governance 

 

At 9:05 a.m., Chair Reid called the meeting to order. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 

Chair Reid inquired if there were any disclosures of conflicts of interest. None were declared. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

It was moved by Ms. Fulton, seconded by Ms. Kasi, that the AGENDA for the September 5, 2019 Finance 

& Facilities Committee meeting be approved. 

Carried 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

It was moved by Ms. Kasi, seconded by Ms. Fulton, that the MINUTES of the July 4, 2019 Finance & 

Facilities Committee meeting be approved. 

Carried 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

4.1   MLHU Draft Financial Statements – March 31, 2019 (Report No. 028-19FFC) 

 

Mr. Glasspoole presented the Health Unit’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements for programs in the 

operating year April 1, 2018–March 31, 2019. He noted that once the Blind Low-Vision, Preschool Speech 

and Language, and Infant Hearing Screening programs are transferred to the Thames Valley Children’s 

Centre (TVCC), the relevant funds will flow directly from the Ministry of Children and Youth Services to 

TVCC. 

 

It was moved by Ms. Cassidy, seconded by Ms. Fulton, that the Finance & Facilities Committee 

recommend that the Board of Health approve the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the 

Middlesex-London Health Unit, March 31, 2019, as appended to Report No. 028-19FFC. 

Carried 

 

 



Public Session                                                            - 2 -                                         2019 September 5 

Finance & Facilities Committee Minutes 

 

4.2 Q2 Financial Update and Factual Certificate (Report No. 029-19FFC) 

 

Mr. Glasspoole provided context for this report. He explained that the Health Unit is expected to generate 

enough savings to offset the current deficit of $61,000. It was noted that much of the gapping funds were 

found by limiting hiring and restricting travel. 

 

It was moved by Ms. Kasi, seconded by Ms. Cassidy, that the Finance & Facilities Committee recommend 

that the Board of Health: 

1) Receive Report No. 029-19FFC re: “Q2 Financial Update and Factual Certificate” for 

information; and 

2) Approve the allocation of variance funds, above those required to offset the agency gapping 

budget, to relocation-related expenses to a maximum of $1 million in 2019. 

Carried 

 

4.3 2019 Budget – MOHLTC Approved Grants (Report No. 030-19FFC) 

 

Mr. Glasspoole advised the Committee that in addition to the funds expected from the Ministry of Health 

and Long-Term Care, the Health Unit will receive $1,861,400 for a new Ontario Seniors Dental Care 

Program and $10,000, via a one-time funding grant, for a Public Health Inspector Practicum Program. 

 

Mr. Glasspoole also noted that the Senior Leadership Team has asked that the hiring and travel restrictions 

be removed. 

 

Discussion ensued on the following items: 

• Municipal funding for upcoming years, and the uncertainty as to how much additional funding the 

municipalities will be asked to provide. 

• That a waiver process for Public Health Standards could help keep programs running with fewer funds. 

• The public health merger and modernization: that there has been no further information from the 

Ministry on amalgamations. 

 

Ms. Di Cesare noted that her Human Resources team has been monitoring the hiring freeze on a weekly 

basis to determine what work has been put on hold and where hiring for a vacant position is needed. With 

the Board’s approval, hiring practices will continue as they did before the restrictions were put in place. 

 

Staff provided further information on the Ontario Seniors Dental Care Program (OSDCP), noting that a 

more robust report will be sent to the Board of Health. It was noted that the funding for this program is 

annualized. Space for the program has been dedicated at the City Plaza location, and staff are looking at a 

mobile bus, a Strathroy location, and partnering with the Southwest Ontario Aboriginal Health Access 

Centre (SOAHAC) as well as with a retired dentist who is interested in working with seniors. Committee 

members were advised that the OSDCP restricts whom the Health Unit can partner with and does not 

permit the Health Unit to pay private dentists to perform work. Health Unit staff plan to work with Social 

Services at the City to ensure that residents who require service are directed to the clinic. 

 

It was moved by Ms. Fulton, seconded by Ms. Cassidy, that the Finance & Facilities Committee 

recommend that the Board of Health: 

1) Receive Report No. 030-19FFC re: “2019 Budget – MOHLTC – Approved Grants” for 

information; and 

2) Approve removing the deficit mitigation step with respect to recruitment as outlined in the April 

Board of Health Report No. 031-19 re: “Impact of 2019 Provincial Budget.” 

Carried 

 
4.4 Bylaw and Policy Review (Report No. 031-19FFC) 

 

Ms. Gauthier presented the report and noted that changes had been made to reflect current practices. 



Public Session                                                            - 3 -                                         2019 September 5 

Finance & Facilities Committee Minutes 

 

 

Policy G-330 Gifts and Honoraria was updated to provide guidance on what types of honoraria the Health 

Unit can pay. Ms. Gauthier added that this policy had been compared with City and County policies. 

 

Policy G-240 Tangible Capital Assets received substantial revisions to align it with the accounting policies. 

 

Chair Reid requested that “track changes” be used when policies are brought to the Finance & Facilities 

Committee for review, so that the proposed changes are highlighted and may be compared. 

 

It was moved by Ms. Kasi, seconded by Ms. Cassidy, that the Finance & Facilities Committee: 

1) Receive Report No. 031-19FFC re: “Bylaw and Policy Review” for information; and 

2) Approve the governance by-laws and policies outlined within this report, which relate to the 

 financial operations of the Middlesex-London Health Unit to go to Governance Committee for final 

 review. 

Carried 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Next meeting: October 3, 2019. 

 

In Chair Reid’s absence, Ms. Cassidy will present the Committee’s summary at the Board of Health 

meeting on September 19. 

 

CONFIDENTIAL  

 

It was moved by Ms. Fulton, seconded by Ms. Kasi, that the Finance & Facilities Committee approve 

confidential minutes of the July 4, 2019 Finance & Facilities Committee meeting. 

Carried 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

At 9:45 a.m., it was moved by Ms. Fulton, seconded by Ms. Kasi, that the meeting be adjourned. 

Carried 

 

At 9:46 a.m., Chair Reid adjourned the meeting. 

 

 

_________________________________   ______________________________ 

MATTHEW REID      CHRISTOPHER MACKIE 

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 
 

 

 

 



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 033-19FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 
 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health / CEO 
 

DATE:  2019 October 31 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2020 BUDGET – PROGRAMING BUDGETING AND MARGINAL ANALYSIS (PBMA) 
DISINVESTMENT PROPOSALS 

 
Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee approve PBMA Disinvestments totaling 

$493,388 as outlined in Appendix A of Report No. 033-19FFC. 
 

Key Points  

• Program Budgeting and Marginal Analysis (PBMA) is an integral part of the Health Unit’s budget 

process and allows us to identify opportunities for reallocating resources from areas of lower impact to 

areas of higher impact.  

• In the context of budget contraction, PBMA can help maintain adequate budget support for programs 

and services with the greatest impact on health. 

• Through the PBMA process, disinvestments of $493,388 have been identified to offset the funding 

shortfall related to inflationary pressures, including expected increases in facility costs. 

 
Background 
 

In report 026-19FFC, Proposed 2020/21 Budget Process, Criteria & Weighting, revisions to the approach 

to PBMA were introduced for 2020/21 including a revision to the proposed budget timeframe and 

introduction of a two-part budget.  Subsequently, the Health Unit was advised that the Ministry of Health 

and Long-Term Care will continue to plan funding health units on a calendar fiscal basis, unchanged from 

prior years. Due to this revision to the planning timeframe, the revised funding shortfall was calculated to be 

$473,972 to accommodate funding at the same level as 2019.   

 

The budget process has been modified for 2020 whereby the focus is to identify disinvestments sufficient to 

support inflationary pressures.  The likelihood that surplus funds can be identified to invest in new program 

opportunities remains unlikely.   

 

Proposed PBMA Disinvestment Opportunities 
 

A total of fourteen disinvestment proposals amounting to $493,388, are recommended by the Senior 

Leadership Team for inclusion in the 2020 Health Unit Budget.  Descriptions of the proposals are included 

in Appendix A.   

 
Next Steps 
 

If approved, the recommended proposals will be incorporated into the 2020 budget proposal. 

 

This report was prepared by the Finance Team, Healthy Organization Division. 

 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

  

http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-10-31-report-033-19-ffc-appendix-a.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-07-06-report-026-19-ffc.pdf


Appendix A 
Report 033 – 19FFC 

 

 
2020 PBMA Disinvestments 

 

Division No. Proposal Value FTE Score 

EHID 1-0016 IDC Budget Streamlining -$      5,639 0.00 0 

EHID 1-0020 CERV Recruitment Budget -$      5,000 0.00 -80 

EHID 1-0019 VPD Program Supplies -$    10,000 0.00 -42 

EHID 1-0031 Mileage Reduction -$      8,000 0.00 0 

HL 1-0001 PHN – Young Adult Team -$    53,383 -0.50 -133 

HL 1-0006 PHN – Child Health Team -$    53,383 -0.50 -133 

HL/OMOH 1-0009 Policy Analyst -$  121,198 -1.00 -129 

Cross 

MLHU 

1-0024 Reduction of ASO Premiums -$  100,000 0.00 0 

HO 1-0026 Restructure of HR Manager Role -$    17,627 0.00 -24 

HO 1-0029 Library Subscription and Access 

Copyright 

-$      5,000 0.00 -65 

HO 1-0030 Elimination of MLHU Van -$      6,080 0.00 -90 

HS 1-0004 HBHC Family Home Visitor -$    68,998 -1.00 -40 

HS 1-0008 PHAC Funding for SSFB Dietitian -$    19,080 0.00 0 

HS 1-0010 Healthy Start Operational Reductions -$    20,000 0.00 0 

  Total -$  493,388 -3.00  

 

Disinvestment Descriptions 

 

#1-0016 – IDC Budget Streamlining 

Introduction of Electronic Client Records (ECR) will streamline record keeping and eliminate the need 

for consulting fees and casual PHN support to maintain older databases that will be decommissioned.  

Centralized purchasing of supplies for Vaccine Preventable Disease (VPD) and Environmental Health 

will also contribute further savings.  

#1-0020 – CERV Recruitment Budget 

This proposal is to suspend recruitment for Community Emergency Response Volunteers (CERV) as 

Emergency Response currently has 100 volunteers and engagement activities or emergency events are 

limited.  The department maintains sufficient budget for ad hoc recruitment in the event of an emergency.    

 



Appendix A 
Report 033 – 19FFC 

 

#1-0019 – VPD Program Supplies 

The number of immunization clinics held per week was reduced as clients are directed to receive vaccines 

from their family physician.  Clinics are now shifting focus to serve priority populations.  As a result, the 

cost of clinic supplies, notably vaccines purchased for resale has also declined. 

 

#1-0031 – Mileage Reduction 

Work assignments were reconfigured in January 2019 based on recommendations from a Public Health 

Inspector review.  More efficient routing of work assignments has resulted in lower transportation costs. 

These improvements have already realized cost savings y in 2019.   

 

#1-0001 – PHN Young Adult Team 

The Young Adult Team has shared a full-time public health nurse with the Child Health Team to provide 

support for programming in schools and to act as lead for joint-team initiatives. The role for the shared 

resource is currently vacant and the work of the team has been reprioritized. 

 

#1-0006 – PHN Child Health Team 

The Child Health Team has also shared a full-time public health nurse with the Young Adult Team to 

provide support for programming in schools and to act as lead for joint-team initiatives. The role for the 

shared resource is currently vacant and the work of the team has been reprioritized. 

 

#1-0009 – Policy Analyst 

The change in provincial government, along with the proposed amalgamation of health units provides an 

opportunity to take a regional approach to enable healthy public policy adaptation.   An opportunity also 

exists to explore best practices for public health advocacy within a regional lens once the new regional 

health unit is operating.  Teams within the Health Unit will continue local and provincial knowledge 

exchange and policy adoption with partners and municipal governments. 

 

#1-0024 – Reduction of ASO Premiums 

In reviewing MLHU's experience in funding Administrative Services Only (ASO) personal insurance 

claims for employees, the monthly contribution to the Health Unit's insurer (Great West Life) has 

consistently exceeded the ASO pay out for insurance claims submitted. A portion of the excess 

contributions that have accumulated will be withdrawn in fiscal 2019 and the monthly premiums will be 

reduced in 2020 by approximately $8,333 or $100,000 per annum. This proposal will be presented by 

Aon Hewitt on behalf of the Health Unit when they renegotiate the rate of premiums that will be payable 

to the insurer for the 2020 fiscal period. 

 

#1-0026 – Restructure HR Manager Role 

This proposal is to permanently move the HR Manager position to a Band 6 to align with the other 

functional managers on the Healthy Organization management team who are also at the same band.        

In addition, the proposal will move the Acting Manager into this permanent role. This allows for a growth 

opportunity for the current incumbent to gain management experience and supports succession planning 

within the HR team. 

 

#1-0029 – Library Subscription and Access Copyright 

The Health Unit and Shared Library Services Partnership (SLSP) have a combined budget of 

approximately $40,000. This budget is used for subscriptions to databases and journals required to 

conduct evidence-informed public health practice. This proposal would reduce the Health Unit library 

budget by $5,000 which would result in the purchase of fewer journal titles and a disinvestment from 

Access Copyright which allows electronic sharing of journal articles throughout the Health Unit.   

 



Appendix A 
Report 033 – 19FFC 

 

Currently, SLSP uses Access Copyright with its client health units by sending articles electronically when 

individual journal copyright allows or otherwise sending a hard copy.  The Health Unit would retain 

access to the same journal titles, albeit some would come through inter-library loans and shared 

databases. 

 

#1-0030 - Elimination of MLHU Van 

This proposal recommends the disposal of the Health Unit’s van. Operating costs are expected to increase 

significantly in the coming years which do not support its relatively low usage. Disposal is planned to 

occur after completing the move to Citi Plaza. This will provide enough time to complete purge activities 

and provide support for moving-related activities.  

#1-0004 – HBHC Family Home Visitor 

The Best Beginnings Team propose to decrease the number of Family Home Visitors (FHV) by 1.0 FTE. 

This position is currently vacant and a permanent decrease in complement would not significantly impede 

the capacity of the remaining team members to meet current demand for service. 

 

#1-0008 – PHAC Funding for SSFB Dietitian 

The Health Unit previously provided funding for a dietitian for Smart Start for Babies (SSFB) program.  

Under this proposal, funding for this position (0.2 FTE) will originate from Public Health Agency of 

Canada (PHAC), commencing in their next fiscal period which starts April 1, 2020.   

 

#1-0010 – HS Operational Reductions 

With increased access to resources online as well as increased use of social media for campaigns, reduced 

spending of $20,000 for program supplies can be realized which reflects savings of $10,000 from each of 

the Reproductive Health and Early Years teams respectively.   

 

 

 



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 034-19FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health / CEO  

 

DATE:  2019 October 31 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PROPOSAL TO DRAW DOWN RESERVE FUNDS 
 
Recommendation 

 

It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee recommend that the Board of Health 

approve: 

1) Using up to $818,258 from the Funding Stabilization Reserve to fund in part, the cost of leasehold 

improvements in connection with the Health Unit’s relocation of premises to Citi Plaza;  

2) Using up to $123,771 from the Dental Treatment Reserve to fund in part, the cost of leasehold 

improvements related to dental treatment facilities in the new location;  

3) Using up to $29,462 from the Accumulated Sick Leave Reserve to defray OMERS costs for 2019; 

4) Returning $6,044 from the Environmental – Septic Tank Reserve to the Ministry of the Environment 

if that Ministry accepts the funds, and if not accepted, then applying these funds to leasehold 

improvements related to Environmental Health in the new location; and 

5) Closing the Dental Treatment Reserve, Accumulated Sick Leave Reserve and the Environmental – 

Septic Tank Reserve. 

 

 

Key Points 

• Upon review of the Health Unit reserve funds it is recommended that the Board approve the winding 

down of several reserves due to changes that have occurred to satisfy their intended purpose. 

• In all cases where it is recommended to close a reserve fund, staff have attempted to identify the most 

appropriate use bearing in mind the sources of the funds and their intended purpose or use.  

• Given the current relocation build and immediate cashflow requirements, drawdown of some funds is 

being recommended. 

 

 

Background 
 

Funding Stabilization Reserve – This reserve fund was established to ensure the ongoing financial stability 

and fiscal health of the Health Unit. Use of these funds can support operating cost increases that are largely 

temporary in nature and not within the Health Unit’s ability to contain in the short term. Significant 

incremental costs of a temporary nature related to the move have been identified which require funding in 

the immediate term. Proceeds from this reserve can be used to address current cash flow requirements and 

will reduce the need to borrow funds and to incur financing charges in the near term. Funds available in this 

reserve as at December 31, 2018 were $818,258. 

 

Dental Treatment Reserve – This reserve fund was established from the sale of assets related to the closure 

of various dental clinics throughout the City of London related to a policy change from the Ontario Works 

program.  The reserve fund can be used to fund annual deficits (if any) from operations and ultimately for 

future obligations relating to closure of the Dental Treatment Clinic.  

 

  

  



2019 October 31 - 2 - Report No. 034-19FFC 

 

  

 

With the introduction of the Ontario Seniors Dental Care Program (OSDCP), the Health Unit will avoid any 

future staff layoffs in connection with the closing of the Dental Clinic at 50 King Street.  Going forward, a 

new dental clinic will be constructed at the Health Unit’s Citi Plaza location which will be used jointly for 

OSDCP and for preventative dental care.  It is proposed that the residual proceeds from the Dental Treatment 

Reserve, amounting to $123,771 be used to defray the cost to build this clinic. 

  

Accumulated Sick Leave Reserve - This reserve fund has a residual balance of $29,462 although there are 

no longer any employees eligible to receive accrued sick leave benefits. All prior claims have now been 

settled.  As the Board had originally approved the transfer of budget savings from an OMERS Contribution 

Holiday to fund the reserve, it is proposed that the residual balance be used to pay OMERS contributions for 

the current year. 

    

Environmental – Septic Tank Reserve – This reserve fund has a residual balance of $6,044 and there is no 

likelihood of further claims against the Health Unit in connection with septic tank inspections which were 

last performed by the Health Unit in 1994. The fund was originally established from grants from the Ontario 

Ministry of Environment and any unused portion is refundable to the Ministry of the Environment in its new 

form. 

 

Next Steps 
 

Based on direction from the Board of Health, management would use proceeds from the Funding 

Stabilization Reserve and the Dental Treatment Reserve to offset temporary increases in operating costs in 

connection with the Health Unit’s relocation of premises and build of a dental clinic at Citi Plaza.   

 

Further, management would use the funds from the sick leave reserve to pay down OMERS costs in 2019 

and attempt to return funds from the Environmental – Septic Tank Reserve to the original funder however if 

unsuccessful will allocate the proceeds to fit up costs for Environmental Health in the new location. 

 

Once reserve monies are transferred, the Dental Treatment Reserve, Accumulated Sick Leave Reserve and 

the Environmental – Septic Tank Reserve will each be closed. 

 

This report was prepared by the Finance Team, Healthy Organization Division. 

 

 

 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

 



Key Points 

• The Board of Health is responsible for the Health Unit’s governance by-laws and policies.  

• The approved policy model requires that governance by-laws and policies be reviewed at least every 

two years; review and revision of governance by-laws and policies can be initiated at any time as 

needed. 

• The policies brought forward to the Finance and Facilities Committee have been reviewed by staff 

and updated as necessary to ensure continuing compliance with applicable standards, legislation and 

agreements. 

• Once the Finance & Facilities Committee is satisfied with its review, the policies will be forwarded to 

the Governance Committee for final review.  

                      MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 035-19FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

 

DATE:  2019 October 31 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

POLICY REVIEW 
Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee: 

1) Receive Report No. 035-19FFC for information; and 

2) Endorse the governance policies outlined within this report, which relate to the financial operations 

of the Middlesex-London Health Unit, and refer them to the Governance Committee for final review. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background 
 

In 2016, the Board of Health approved a plan for developing and revising by-laws and policies based on a 

model that incorporates best practices from the Ontario Public Health Standards and advice obtained through 

legal counsel. Refer to Report No. 018-16GC. 

 

Policy Review 

 

The following policies were prepared for review by the Finance and Facilities Committee in accordance with 

the two-year review cycle, found in Appendix A: 

• G-200    Approval and Signing Authority 

• G-220    Contractual Services 

• G-250    Reserve and Reserve Funds 

 

G-200 Approval and Signing Authority policy underwent significant revision including clear delineation 

of financial and non-financial signing authority. Appendices were added setting out a) financial signing 

authority limits for submitters and approvers, b) specific signing authority to engage the Health Unit in non-

financial contracts and c) a comprehensive contract review checklist.   

 

  

  

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2016-11-17-report-018-16-gc.pdf
http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-10-31-report-035-19-ffc-appendix-a.pdf


2019 October 31 -  2  - Report No. 035-19FFC 

 

  

 

G-220 Contractual Services policy underwent editorial revisions, including replacement of approval and 

signing authority-related content with reference to Policy G-200 Approval and Signing Authority, and 

contract terms incorporated in an appended contract review checklist. 

 

G-250 Reserve and Reserve Funds policy underwent minor editorial revisions.  In addition, the 

Accumulated Sick Leave Reserve, the Environmental – Septic Tank Reserve and the Dental Treatment 

Reserve will be recommended to be closed. 

 

Next Steps  
 

The Finance & Facilities Committee has the opportunity to review the appended revised policies. 

 

Once the Finance & Facilities Committee is satisfied with its review, the policies will be forwarded to the 

Governance Committee for final review.  

 

This report was prepared by Healthy Organization Division. 

 

 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

 



 MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
 

GOVERNANCE MANUAL 
 
SUBJECT: Approval and Signing Authority POLICY NUMBER: G-200 
SECTION: Financial and Organizational 

Accountability 
PAGE:  1 of 2 

 
IMPLEMENTATION: July 20, 2000 APPROVAL: Board of Health 
SPONSOR: MOH/CEO SIGNATURE:  
REVIEWED BY:  Finance and Facilities 

Committee 
DATE:  June 14, 2019 

    

 

PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to outline the signing authority and responsibilities for those who 
can approve financial and non-financial transactions, and all binding agreements on behalf of 
the Board of Health. 

 
POLICY 
 
Middlesex-London Health Unit (MLHU) management are granted signing authority to make 
commitments or expenditures on behalf of the organization, in accordance with the 
requirements set out in this policy.  
 
Individuals must respect this privilege and abide by this policy or risk having their signing 
authority revoked or revised. 
 
This policy applies to: 

• All financial commitments; 

• All purchase orders/requisitions and contracts; and 

• All binding, non-financial contracts. 
 
This policy does not apply to employment contracts. 
 
Refer to Appendix A for financial signing authority limits, and Appendix B for non-financial 
contracts. Similar and related transactions that would normally be processed concurrently must 
not be split to avoid signing authority levels. 
 
Supporting documentation must be provided in accordance with the requirements set out in 
Policy G-220 Contractual Services and Policy G-230 Procurement as applicable. 
 
A list of names, titles and signatures for all individuals with signing authority will be maintained 
by Finance. 
 
Controlled digital signatures are managed in accordance with G-B-20 By-law No. 2 Banking and 
Finance. 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A – Financial Signing Authority Limits 
Appendix B – Non-Financial Signing Authority  



 MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
 

GOVERNANCE MANUAL 
 
SUBJECT: Approval and Signing Authority POLICY NUMBER: G-200 
SECTION: Financial and Organizational 

Accountability 
PAGE:  2 of 2 

 

 
RELATED POLICIES 
 
G-220 Contractual Services 
G-230 Procurement 
G-B20 By-law No. 2 Banking and Finance  

 
 

REVISION DATES (* = major revision): 
2019-10-24 
2016-12-08 
2014-05-01 
2012-04-19 
2011-02-17 
2004-06-17 
2000-07-20 
 

 

 
 



 
APPENDIX A 

To Policy G-200 

Financial Signing Authority 
 

Group Total Amount of Expense Per Transaction 

(in CAD, inclusive of taxes and gratuities) 

Non-Management Employee - 

Manager $5,000 

Director/AMOH $20,000 

MOH/CEO $60,000 

Board of Health >$60,000 

Manager, Finance (as approver of MOH/CEO) $20,000 

Board of Health (as approver of MOH/CEO) >$20,000 

 
 



 
APPENDIX B 

To Policy G-200 

Non-Financial Signing Authority 
 

 Type of Contract Signing Authority 

1. General 

 Union Agreements (MOUs, grievance responses etc.) Director, Healthy Organization 

 Collective Agreement Minutes of Settlement Board of Health 

 Banking – Choice of Bank Board of Health 

 Banking – Day to Day Director, Healthy Organization 
or designate 

 Insurance – Choice of Carrier/Broker and Coverage 
(employee group insurance benefits, Employee and 
Family Assistance Program) 

MOH/CEO 
 

 Auditor – Appointment Board of Health 

 Auditor – Certificates and Undertakings MOH/CEO 

2. Consultants, Independent Contractors and Professional Services 

 Lawyers/Labour Negotiators (appointment) Director, Healthy Organization 

 
Dentists and Physicians (appointment of medical 
advisors) 

MOH/CEO 

 
Dentists and Physicians (e.g. Sexual Health Clinic, TB 
Clinic) 

MOH/CEO or AMOH 

 Physicians – AMOH and MOH/CEO Board of Health 

 Nurse Practitioners (RN Extended Class) MOH/CEO or AMOH 

 
Agency or Individual Service Provider (not listed above) – 
Short-Term (i.e. less than 12 months) 

Director or AMOH 

 
Agency or Individual Service Provider (not listed above) – 
Long-Term (i.e.  13 months or more) 

MOH/CEO 

3. Program-Related Service Agreements  

 Ministry of Health or other ministries Board of Health or MOH/CEO  

 
Other local agencies (coalition agreements, lead agency 
agreements). 

Board of Health or MOH/CEO 

 Non-financial Procurement Agreements including NDAs 
Director, Healthy Organization 
or designate 

 Program-specific NDAs Director or AMOH 

5. Educational Agreements 

 Affiliation Agreements, Student Placements Director, Healthy Organization 

6. Research/Grants 

 Applications, Agreements and Awards Director after consultation with 
MOH/CEO 

7. Contracting of Services  

 Lead Agency Agreements Board of Health 

 Supplemental Services MOH/CEO 

 
*Refer to Appendix A for financial signing authority limits where applicable. 

**Signing authority is automatically vested in individuals at higher levels of authority in the direct 
line of reporting. 



 MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
 

GOVERNANCE MANUAL 
 
SUBJECT: Contractual Services   POLICY NUMBER: G-220 
SECTION: Financial and Organizational 

Accountability 
PAGE:  1 of 3 

 

Appendix A 
Report No. 035-19FFC 

IMPLEMENTATION: August 30, 2000 APPROVAL: Board of Health 
SPONSOR: MOH / CEO SIGNATURE:  
REVIEWED BY:  Finance and Facilities 

Committee 
DATE:  October 11, 2019 

    

 

PURPOSE 
 
To outline the procedures for negotiating and documenting contractual agreements. 

 
POLICY 
 
A written contract will be negotiated where there is a risk of contractual liability to the Middlesex 
London Health Unit (MLHU). 
 
The Board of Health is responsible for the approval of all contracts and agreements and may 
delegate this authority as specified in Policy G-200 Approval and Signing Authority Policy. 
 
This policy applies to contracts for professional services invoiced on a fee for services basis, but 
does not apply to employment contracts, which are covered under MLHU’s administrative 
Recruitment & Hiring Policy (5-025). Professional services contracts are for services that 
generally are not performed by unionized employees. 
 
Negotiation of the Contract 

 
The Director/Manager or designate will be responsible for negotiating the contract with the 
provider/recipient. Where the content of the contract is subject to a provincial policy or standard, 
the Director/Manager is responsible for ensuring that such policies and standards are followed. 

 
The Director/Manager will call upon the expertise of Procurement as needed to assist in the 
development, writing and review of the draft contract for services. The Director, Healthy 
Organization or the Medical Officer of Health/Chief Executive Officer (MOH/CEO) will be 
consulted prior to executing the contract. 
 
It is highly recommended that the draft of the contract be submitted for legal review where there 
is no recent precedent for the contract or where the contract is for a substantial amount of 
money or involves significant liability.  

 
A contract, with the exception of short-term contracts, may contain wording that provides for its 
amendment or early termination. 

 
All contracts should be fully executed prior to the commencement date for the provision of 
services. 

 



 MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
 

GOVERNANCE MANUAL 
 
SUBJECT: Contractual Services   POLICY NUMBER: G-220 
SECTION: Financial and Organizational 

Accountability 
PAGE:  2 of 3 

 

Appendix A 
Report No. 035-19FFC 

All original contracts will be filed with Healthy Organization. A copy will be retained by the 
Director/Manager and by the other party/parties to the contract. 
 
Contract Terms 

 
Refer to the MLHU Contract Review Checklist (Appendix A) for required contract terms. 
 
Evaluation of Contracts 

 
Service provision under contract is evaluated informally on an ongoing basis. Periodic review of 
the contract and its standards will be measured against achievements. 

 
Variances or discrepancies from contract requirements will be addressed in a timely manner by 
the Director/Manager that negotiated the terms of the contract and/or the Director, Healthy 
Organization or designate.  

 
All contracts are evaluated before renewal.   
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A – MLHU Contract Review Checklist 
 

RELATED POLICIES 
 
G-200 Approval and Signing Authority 
G-230 Procurement 
 
 
REVISION DATES (* = major revision): 
2007-01-18, 2019-10-11 
 

 



Appendix A 
Report No. 035-19FFC  

 

 

1 

MLHU Contract Review Checklist 

Name of Contractor / Party / Vendor 

  

Type of Contact Contact Value 

   

 

Submitter Approver 

   

Please refer to Administrative Policy 4-XXX Approval and Signing Authority 

Reviewed By Manager  Reviewed by Director  

    

  



Appendix A 
Report No. 035-19FFC  

 

 

2 

MLHU Contract Review Checklist 

Information which must be included in the contract:  /  

1a Legal names of the parties.   

2a 
Vision, purpose and objectives of the contract. This would include both terms and quantities of the goods or services 
procured. 

  

3a Term of the contract, including a specific beginning and end date.   

4a Responsibilities of each party, including any requirements for reporting and/ or performance.   

5a Consequences for failure to fulfil contract conditions.  

6a 
Confidentiality provisions. (Contractor and its agents are prohibited from using or disclosing financial, personal, and 
other sensitive information about the Health Unit and its members, or clients except as necessary to perform 
pursuant to contract terms.) 

 

7a Privacy breach obligations (Contractor and its agents have duties to report and manage privacy breaches).  

8a 
Statement that the contracting agency or party is not an employee (and is not subject to the applicable law of 
Ontario relating to employees), agent or partner of the Health Unit, and is an independent contractor 

 

9a 
Except when short-term in nature, provisions for amending the contract or early termination of the processes an 
results involved. 

 

10a 
Compliance clause (parties agree to comply with all applicable federal and provincial laws and regulations). 
Exceptions may only be made with explicit prior permission of the Board of Health 

 

11a Licensing and certification requirements for the contracting agency, or recipient party.   

12a Statement that the entire written contract is binding and any verbal agreements are of no force and effect.   

13a 
Statement that if any provision of contact is determined to be invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, such 
invalidity or unenforceability shall attach only to such provision or part thereof and the remaining part of such 
provision and all other provisions hereof shall continue in full force and effect. 

 

14a Statement regarding how and when notice in contracts are to be delivered.  

15a Statement prohibiting the assignment of services without the express consent of the Health Unit.  

16a 
Payment terms, including some manner for determining when payment is to be made (i.e., specific dates when 
payment is to be made, payment to be made within thirty days of receipt of invoice, etc.). 

  

17a 
Provisions requiring the contractor to pay all employees who are perform services at the Health Unit not less than 
the living wage (see procurement protocols for further details).  

 

18a Signature lines for execution by appropriate parties.   

19a Reference documents tied to the contract.  

  



Appendix A 
Report No. 035-19FFC  

 

 

3 

MLHU Contract Review Checklist 

Information which should be included, if applicable:  /  

1b Any other conditions considered essential in order for the contract to occur.   

2b Additional rights and/or responsibilities of each party.   

3b 
Requirement of receipts if payment for expenses is being made, statement of any requirements for reimbursement 
and a limitation on payment. 

  

4b 
Clear identification of the party who will be responsible for any costs associated with the contract (losses suffered as 
a result of actions, negligence, or the conduct of the contractor / provider). 

  

5b Requirement to audit the contractor / party’s internal control records and documents.  

6b Service disruption clauses and business continuity plans.  

7b 
Warranties (For services, should warrant that services to be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner 
consistent with industry standards).  

 

8b 
Service Level Agreements (Usually an attachment. Includes performance standards; response times and 
requirements; and penalties for failure to meet performance standards). 

 

9b Declarations that the contractor / party has no conflict of interest.   

10b Commitment to adhere to Health Unit policies, rule, regulation, procedures and guidelines.  

11b 
Evidence of insurance coverage (Vendor should provide reliable evidence of current insurance coverage in an 
amount sufficient to protect Health Unit’s interests). 

 

12b Outline respective roles and responsibilities with respect to joint appointments under affiliation agreements.   

13b 
Outline recognition of authorship, ownership and proprietary rights and give direction regarding the retention or 
destruction of proprietary Health Unit information. 

  

14b 
Funding specifications (i.e. any limitations or restrictions on the use or application of funds, whether continuation of 
the work is dependent on funding or advances of funds that are not spent to provide services will be returned to the 
Health Unit or funder).  

  

15b Renewal terms.  

 

  



Appendix A 
Report No. 035-19FFC  

 

 

4 

MLHU Contract Review Checklist 

Contract Omissions and/or Variance from Policy 

# Rationale 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 



 MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
 

GOVERNANCE MANUAL 
 
SUBJECT: Reserve and Reserve Funds POLICY NUMBER: G-250 
SECTION: Financial and Organizational 

Accountability 
PAGE:  1 of 2 

 

APPENDIX A 
Report No. 035-19FFC 

 

IMPLEMENTATION: June 15, 2017 APPROVAL: Board of Health 
SPONSOR: MOH/CEO SIGNATURE:  
REVIEWED BY:  Finance and Facilities 

Committee 
DATE:  June 15, 2017 

 
    

 

PURPOSE 
 
To provide a process for establishing, maintaining, and using reserves and reserve funds. 
 

POLICY 
 
The maintenance of reserves and reserve funds is an acceptable business practice that helps to 
protect the Middlesex-London Health Unit (MLHU) and its funders from future funding liabilities. 
In order for MLHU to address one-time or short-term expenditures, either planned or unplanned, 
which arise, it is necessary to maintain reserves and/or reserve funds. 
 
MLHU will attempt to offset any unexpected expenditures within the annual operating budget for 
all MLHU programs where possible without jeopardizing programs.  
 
Establishment of Reserves and Reserve Funds 
  
Any reserve and reserve fund will be established by resolution of the Board of Health which will 
provide the purpose or use, maximum contributions, and expected timelines for contributions 
and drawdowns. (Refer to Appendix A for a list of MLHU reserves and reserve funds.) 
 
Any reserve or reserve fund is to be held in accordance to Policy G-210 Investment.  
 
Contributions and Drawdowns  
 
Any planned contributions and drawdowns to the reserves or reserve funds will be included in 
the annual operating budget approved by the Board of Health. Any audited unexpended 
municipal funds are eligible for transfer to a reserve or reserve fund by resolution of the Board of 
Health subject to consultation with municipal councils.  
 
Any unplanned withdrawals from the reserves or reserve funds will be approved by resolution of 
the Board of Health.  
 
Any contributions to reserves or reserve funds that include funding from municipal sources will 
be made using the same municipal apportionment used for funding public health programs.  
  



 MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
 

GOVERNANCE MANUAL 
 
SUBJECT: Reserve and Reserve Funds POLICY NUMBER: G-250 
SECTION: Financial and Organizational 

Accountability 
PAGE:  2 of 2 

 

APPENDIX A 
Report No. 035-19FFC 

 

Limits  
 
The maximum contributions to a reserve fund shall not exceed the amount required to fulfill the 
specific requirement.  
The maximum contributions to reserves for any particular operating year shall not exceed 2% of 
gross revenues found on the annual statement of operations of the audited financial statements.  
 
The maximum cumulative reserves shall not exceed 10% of gross revenues found on the 
annual statement of operations of the audited financial statements. 
 
Annual Reporting  
 
An annual report will be provided to the obligated municipalities outlining the transactions of the 
reserve and reserve funds during the previous year. Where possible, planned or future 
contributions and drawdowns will be included.  
 

DEFINITIONS  
 
“Reserves” mean amounts set aside by resolution of the Board of Health that are carried year 
to year mainly as contingencies against unforeseen events or emergencies.  
 
“Reserve Funds” mean amounts set aside for specific purposes by resolution of the Board of 
Health. They are carried from year to year unless consumed or formally closed. 

 

APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A – MLHU Reserve and Reserve Fund Summary  
 

RELATED POLICIES 
 
G-210 Investment 
 

 
REVISION DATES (* = major revision): 
2014-11-20, 2019-10-18 
 

 



  Appendix A 
Policy No. 035-19FFC 

 
APPENDIX A 

To Policy G-250 

 
Middlesex-London Health Unit 

Reserve/Reserve Fund Summary 
 

Funding Stabilization Reserve 
 
Purpose: 
The Funding Stabilization Reserve Fund is required to ensure the ongoing financial stability and 
fiscal health of the Middlesex-London Health Unit. Generally, the use of these funds falls within 
these three categories: 
 

1) Operating and Environmental Emergencies – highest priority and are based on public 
safety and demand nature of the expenditure. 

 
2) Revenue Stability and Operating Contingency - intended to stabilize the impacts of 

cyclical revenue downturns and operating cost increases that are largely temporary and 
not within MLHU’s ability to adjust in the short-term. 
 

3) Innovation – incentive to encourage creativity and innovation, funds maybe be used to 
explore innovative and creative solutions directed towards making MLHU more efficient 
and effective. 
 

Fund Limit:  
Total fund balance shall not exceed 10% of gross revenues in any given year. 
 
Maximum Yearly Contribution: 
Annual contributions to the fund shall not exceed 2% of gross revenues in the year the 
contribution is made. 
 
Technology & Infrastructure Reserve Fund 
 
Purpose: 
The Technology and Infrastructure Reserve is established to create a funding source for 
buildings and infrastructure capital projects, new equipment purchases and capital replacement 
programs. Use of the reserve is restricted to the following types of purchases: 

• Major construction, acquisition, or renovation activities as approved by the Board 

• Major purchases of information technology software or hardware. 

• Vehicle, furniture and/or equipment replacement 
 
Fund Limit: 
$ 2 million  
 
Maximum Yearly Contribution: 
Annual contributions = $250,000 
 
Employment Costs Reserve Fund 
 
 



  Appendix A 
Policy No. 035-19FFC 

 
Purpose: 
Contributions are available to maintain services by alleviating the impact of the growth of wages 
and/or benefits and other related employment costs.   
 
Fund Limit: 
$200,000 
 
Maximum Yearly Contribution: 
Annual contributions = $200,000 



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 032-18FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

 

DATE:  2019 October 31 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Q3 FINANCIAL UPDATE AND FACTUAL CERTIFICATE 
 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee review and recommend to the Board of 

Health to receive Report No. 032-19FFC re: Q3 Financial Update and Factual Certificate for 

information. 

 

Key Points  

• The 2019 approved budget assumes a zero percent increase in Mandatory Programs funding from the 

Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (MOHLTC). 

• A full-year spending surplus of $8,269 is currently forecast after favourable variances across the 

organization fully offset the planned agency gapping budget of $1,124,269 

• Included in the financial update is a signed factual certificate, which provides assurance that financial 

and risk management functions are being performed. 

 
Background 
 

The Board of Health approved the 2019 operating budget on February 21, 2019 (Report No. 007-19FFC). 

The approved budget includes a $250,000 contribution to the Technology and Infrastructure Reserve Fund 

and assumes no increase in Mandatory Programs funding from the MOHLTC.  

 

Financial Highlights 
 

The Budget Variance Summary, which provides budgeted and actual expenditures for the first nine months 

and projections to the end of the operating year for the programs and services governed by the Board of 

Health, is attached as Appendix A. This analysis is based on the original budget for 2019 as approved by the 

Board of Health and outlined to the Board of Health in Report 007-19FFC. 

 

The current full-year forecast reflects a spending surplus of $8,269 as favourable variances anticipated 

across the organization will fully offset the expected agency gapping budget of $1,124,269.   

 

Factual Certificate 
 

A signed factual certificate, attached as Appendix B, is to be signed by senior Health Unit administrators 

responsible for ensuring certain key financial and risk management functions are being performed to the best 

of their knowledge. The certificate is revised as appropriate on a quarterly basis and submitted with each 

financial update. 

 

This report was prepared by the Finance Team, Healthy Organization Division. 

 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

  

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-02-14-report-007-19.pdf
http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-10-31-report-032-19-ffc-appendix-a.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-02-14-report-007-19.pdf
http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-10-31-report-032-19-ffc-appendix-b.pdf


2019 2019 VARIANCE 2019 ANNUAL

 YTD ACTUAL YTD BUDGET (OVER) / % DECEMBER ANNUAL SURPLUS / %

(NET) (NET) UNDER VARIANCE FORECAST NET BUDGET (DEFICIT) VARIANCE Comment / Explanation

Environmental Health & Infectious Disease Division

Office of the Director 205,329$         219,118$         13,789$          6.3% 312,938$         297,938$       (15,000)$          -5.0%
Higher than planned spending for VPD Training & Facilitation ($18,000) will be offset by 

favourable variances in training budgets in other EHID departments.  This additional 

expense is partly offset by lower program supplies $2,000 and travel $1,000.

Emergency Management 108,202           133,249           25,047           18.8% 165,802           180,848         15,046$           8.3%
Lower spending in salaries $7,867 and benefits $2,308 due to staff vacancy coupled 

with lower than planned spending on program costs due to community emergency 

response volunteers (CERV) recruitment pause $4,871.

Food Safety & Healthy Environments 1,246,356        1,254,987        8,630             0.7% 1,679,760        1,707,955      28,195$           1.7%

Lower spending is salaries $18,956 and benefits $4,739 due to gapping for PHI 

position. Lower spending in travel $3,000 and staff development $5,000 and special 

risk budget in other program costs $1,500 partly augmented by higher revenues $5,000 

and offset by higher than planned on-call overtime charges ($10,000).

Infectious Disease Control 1,204,187        1,336,868        132,680          9.9% 1,698,258        1,814,317      116,059$         6.4%

Lower spending in salaries $94,312 and benefits $36,800 due to salary gapping for PHI 

and PHN positions, lower staff development $1,800 and greater efficiencies with 

translation fees $2,000 partly offset by unplanned program costs for IGRA blood testing 

related to an active TB case ($16,770).

Safe Water, Rabies & Vector-Borne Disease 1,020,159        1,021,657        1,498             0.1% 1,378,241        1,385,067      6,826$             0.5%
Lower spending in salaries related to band differential for manager position $4,000, 

program supplies $5,000 partly offset by higher than planned equipment purchases for 

Vector Borne Diseases ($2,174). 

Sexual Health 2,042,753        2,019,151        (23,602)          -1.2% 2,701,701        2,732,418      30,717$           1.1%

Higher than planned revenues from the Clinic will contribute $52,589, lower spending 

for salaries will contribute $21,000, coupled with reduced travel expense $7,600, staff 

development $2,500, partly offset by higher professional fees for FPC physicians 

($15,000) and translation services ($2,000).  For HIV prevention and control, higher 

costs for outreach workers and professional fees in connection with the consumption 

site exceeded funding received from Regional HIV/AIDS Connection (RHAC) 

($32,872).

Vaccine Preventable Disease 1,171,932        1,063,469        (108,463)        -10.2% 1,512,546        1,448,804      (63,742)$          -4.4%
Higher spending for wages ($79,742) to cover unplanned staff vacancies and additional 

casual hours for clinics and schools partly offset by reduced spending for program 

supplies $10,000 and lower benefits contributions for casual staff $5,000.

Total Environmental Health & Infectious Disease Division 6,998,918$        7,048,498$        49,579$           0.7% 9,449,246$        9,567,347$     118,101$           1.2%

Healthy Living Division

Office of the Director 204,676$         278,980$         74,304$          26.6% 288,379$         379,454$       91,075$           24.0%

Lower spending in salaries $59,648 and benefits $17,428 reflecting vacant policy 

advisor position.  Lower spending anticipated in travel $3,000 program supplies $4,000, 

professional services $4,000, staff development $1,500 and program and equipment 

costs $1,500. 

Child Health 1,159,679        1,230,004        70,325           5.7% 1,576,831        1,673,200      96,369$           5.8%
Lower spending in salaries $69,000 and benefits $15,069 due to unfilled PHN vacancy 

and position gapping.   Lower spending for travel $2,200, program supplies $6,000, 

staff development $3,500 and other program costs $600.

Chronic Disease and Tobacco Control 974,367           1,037,416        63,049           6.1% 1,366,227        1,407,541      41,314$           2.9%
Lower spending in salaries $32,434 and benefits $4,930 due to staffing gap.  Lower 

spending also anticipated for travel $2,350 and staff development $1,350.

MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT

NET BUDGET VARIANCE SUMMARY
As at September 30, 2019

1



2019 2019 VARIANCE 2019 ANNUAL

 YTD ACTUAL YTD BUDGET (OVER) / % DECEMBER ANNUAL SURPLUS / %

(NET) (NET) UNDER VARIANCE FORECAST NET BUDGET (DEFICIT) VARIANCE Comment / Explanation

MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT

NET BUDGET VARIANCE SUMMARY
As at September 30, 2019

Healthy Communities and Injury Prevention 720,079           859,012           138,933          16.2% 1,046,195        1,168,241      122,046$         10.4%

Lower spending in salaries $37,500 and benefits $4,000 reflect anticipated hiring gap, 

coupled with lower travel expense $8,550, program supplies $3,000 staff development 

$3,500, professional services $5,500 and equipment and program costs $2,600. 

Additional favourable variance in salaries $44,726 and benefits $12,670 as a Health 

Promoter position will be funded through a cannabis enforcement grant provided by the 

City of London.

Oral Health 695,661           822,213           126,553          15.4% 1,014,889        1,116,045      101,156$         9.1%
Lower spending for salaries $76,019 and benefits $18,637 for staff vacancies and lower 

staff development $4,500 and travel $2,000.

Southwest Tobacco Control Area Network 266,317           323,763           57,447           17.7% 436,009           436,500         491$                0.1% Lower spending related to gapping on salaries and benefits $491.  

Young Adult Health 798,328           836,343           38,015           4.5% 1,099,715        1,137,465      37,750$           3.3%
Lower spending in salaries $21,500 and benefits $2,000 due to expected hiring gaps. 

In addition lower spending on program supplies $8,000, travel $4,500 and professional 

services $2,000 offset by higher spending for staff development ($250).

Total Healthy Living Division 4,819,107$        5,387,732$        568,625$         10.6% 6,828,245$        7,318,446$     490,201$           6.7%

Healthy Start Division

Office of the Director 143,689$         153,490$         9,801$           6.4% 200,116$         208,616$       8,500$             4.1%
Revised plans to lower spending in program supplies $6,000, equipment $1,000, 

program costs $1,000 and travel $500.

Best Beginnings 2,085,869        2,251,236        165,368          7.3% 2,878,476        3,061,076      182,600$         6.0%

Lower spending in salaries $116,900 and benefits $50,500 for staff vacancies and 

gapping. Lower spending for travel $2,000, program supplies $10,000, staff 

development $1,000 and lower than planned interpreter costs $2,000 are also 

expected. 

Early Years Health 1,147,912        1,211,913$      64,001           5.3% 1,577,908        1,648,166      70,258$           4.3%
Lower spending in salaries $42,261 and benefits $7,997 reflect hiring gaps for a 

number of staff positions.  Lower spending in program supplies $20,000 due to change 

in communication strategy with greater emphasis on social media.

Reproductive Health 965,659           1,038,510        72,852           7.0% 1,351,687        1,400,590      48,903$           3.5%

Lower spending in salaries $30,000 and benefits $1,000 reflect vacancy for public 

health nurse positions, lower than planned travel $2,500, program supplies $12,900 

and staff development $2,000. Unplanned revenue for universal prenatal classes will 

contribute $1,903.

Screening Assessment and Intervention 2,103,417        2,103,417$      -                     0.0% 2,103,417        2,103,417      -$                    0.0%
Activities of this team were transferred to Thames Valley Children's Centre during the 

third quarter. Final settlement of financial position is currently under review.

Total Healthy Start Division 6,446,545$        6,758,567$        312,022$         4.6% 8,111,604$        8,421,865$     310,261$           3.7%

Office of the Chief Nursing Officer 385,988$           572,228$         186,240$        32.5% 557,393$           684,129$        126,736$         18.5%

Lower spending in salaries $44,311 and benefits $6,760 due to vacancy for community 

health nurse specialist (CHNS), hiring of Manager, Health Equity and Indigenous 

Reconciliation and health promotor positions, $68,900 related to deferral of diversity 

and inclusion assessment and lower program supplies $3,860 reflecting reprioritized 

team work plans.

Office of the Medical Officer of Health

Office of the Medical Officer of Health 333,078$         384,602$         51,523$          13.4% 526,035$         522,535$       (3,500)$            -0.7%
Higher than planned spending in travel and professional development meetings due to 

COMOH Chair role and public health restructuring discussions. 

2



2019 2019 VARIANCE 2019 ANNUAL

 YTD ACTUAL YTD BUDGET (OVER) / % DECEMBER ANNUAL SURPLUS / %

(NET) (NET) UNDER VARIANCE FORECAST NET BUDGET (DEFICIT) VARIANCE Comment / Explanation

MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT

NET BUDGET VARIANCE SUMMARY
As at September 30, 2019

Communications 366,608$         391,106           24,498           6.3% 524,360           531,684         7,324$             1.4%
Lower spending due to decision not to proceed with rebranding pending health system 

restructuring $10,000 partly offset by higher spending for staff day ($2,676).

Associate Medical Officer of Health 231,630$         186,508$         (45,122)          -24.2% 254,916           254,916         -$                    0.0% No variance anticipated at year-end.

Population Health Assessment & Surveillance 437,132$         436,357           (775)               -0.2% 593,835           593,835         -$                    0.0% No variance anticipated at year-end.

Total Office of the Medical Officer of Health 1,368,448$        1,398,573$        30,125$           2.2% 1,899,146$        1,902,970$     3,824$               0.2%

Healthy Organization Division

Office of the Director 255,293$         264,224$         8,931$           3.4% 356,499$         356,499$       -$                    0.0% No variance anticipated at year-end.

Finance 320,566           315,233           (5,332)            -1.7% 422,906           422,906         -$                    0.0% No variance anticipated at year-end.

Human Resources 438,397           515,669$         77,272           15.0% 605,993           689,909         83,916$           12.2%
Lower spending in salaries $58,823 and benefits $25,093 due to manager vacancy and 

position gapping.

Information Technology 770,648           832,122           61,475           7.4% 1,210,332        1,114,332      (96,000)$          -8.6%
Higher than planned spending for cell phones and end-user equipment upgrades were 

previously approved by the Board of Health.

Privacy Risk & Governance 105,675           111,937$         6,263             5.6% 152,360           152,360         -$                    0.0% No variance anticipated at year-end.

Procurement & Operations 203,075           208,357           5,282             2.5% 283,638           283,638         -$                    0.0% No variance anticipated at year-end.

Program Planning & Evaluation 522,287           638,453$         116,166          18.2% 771,034           866,533         95,499$           11.0%
Lower spending in salaries $76,000 and benefits $19,499 related to program evaluator 

vacancies.

Strategic Projects 194,275           193,497           (778)               -0.4% 263,202           263,202         -$                    0.0% No variance anticipated at year-end.

Total Healthy Organization Division 2,810,215$        3,079,493$        269,278$         8.7% 4,065,964$        4,149,379$     83,415$             2.0%

General Expenses & Revenues 1,801,206        1,988,830        187,623$         9.4% 2,651,773$        2,651,773$     -$                    0.0% No variance anticipated at year-end.

Total Expenditures Before Expected Gapping 24,630,430$    26,233,921$    1,603,492$     6.1% 33,563,371$    34,695,909$  1,132,538$      3.3%

Less: Expected Agency Gapping Budget (843,202)          (843,202)        (1,124,269)       (1,124,269)     (1,124,269)$     
 Expected agency gapping budget forecast to be offset  by lower spending in all 

operating divisions. 

TOTAL BOARD OF HEALTH EXPENDITURES 24,630,430$    25,390,719$    760,290$        3.0% 32,439,102$    33,571,640$  8,269$             0.0%

3



 

Appendix B to Report No. 032-19FFC 

 

Middlesex-London Health Unit 

FACTUAL CERTIFICATE 

 

 

To: Members of the Board of Health, Middlesex-London Health Unit 

 

 

The undersigned hereby certify that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief after due 

inquiry, as at September 30, 2019: 

 

1. The Middlesex-London Health Unit is in compliance, as required by law, with all statutes and 

regulations relating to the withholding and/or payment of governmental remittances, including, 

without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following: 

• All payroll deductions at source, including Employment Insurance, Canada Pension Plan 

and Income Tax; 

• Ontario Employer Health Tax; and 

• Federal Harmonized Sales Tax (HST). 

Further, staff believe that all necessary policies and procedures are in place to ensure that all future 

payments of such amounts will be made in a timely manner. 

 

2. The Middlesex-London Health Unit has remitted to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement 

System (OMERS) all funds deducted from employees along with all employer contributions for these 

purposes. 

 

3. The Middlesex-London Health Unit is in compliance with all applicable Health and Safety 

legislation. 

 

4. The Middlesex-London Health Unit is in compliance with applicable Pay Equity legislation. 

 

5. The Middlesex-London Health Unit has not substantially changed any of its accounting policies or 

principles since December 8, 2016. 

 

6. The Middlesex-London Health Unit reconciles its bank accounts regularly and no unexpected activity 

has been found. 

 

7. The Middlesex-London Health Unit has filed all information requests within appropriate deadlines. 

 

8. The Middlesex-London Health Unit is in compliance with the requirements of the Charities Act, and 

the return for 2018 has been filed. (due by June 30th each year). 

 

9. The Middlesex-London Health Unit has been named in a complaint to the Human Rights Tribunal of 

Ontario by a former student.  The hearing has been completed and a decision to dismiss has been 

rendered that found no violation of human rights. The individual filed an Application to Divisional 

Court for a Judicial Review which was dismissed, the individual is now seeking motion for leave to 

appeal. MLHU has also been named in a second complaint to the Human Rights Tribunal of Ontario 

by the same individual. This application is in respect to the recruitment of three management 

positions for which he was not selected for an interview. 

  



 

 

10. The Middlesex-London Health Unit is fulfilling its obligations by providing services in accordance 

with our funding agreements, the Health Protection & Promotion Act, the Ontario Public Health 

Standards, and as reported to the Board of Health through reports including but not limited to: 

• Quarterly Financial Updates; 

• Annual Audited Financial Statements; 

• Annual Reporting on the Accountability Indicators; 

• Annual Service Plans; and 

• Information and Information Summary Reports. 

 

Dated at London, Ontario this 1st day of October, 2019 

 

 

 

             

Dr. Christopher Mackie      Brian Glasspoole 

Medical Officer of Health & CEO   Manager, Finance 

 

 

      

Laura Di Cesare 

Director, Healthy Organization 

 



Key Points 

• The Procurement Policy was updated in March 2019 following a legal review which included a 

recommendation to increase to the bidding period for tenders to 40 days. 

• Revised electronic tendering practices have enabled a reduction in the bidding period to 25 days 

• A reduced bidding period provides increased flexibility to staff.  

• Once the Finance & Facilities Committee is satisfied with its review, the by-laws and policies will be 

forwarded to the Governance Committee for final review.  

                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 036-19FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health/CEO 

 

DATE:  2019 October 31 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PROCUREMENT GUIDELINE POLICY UPDATE 
 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee: 

 

1) Receive Report No. 036-19FFC for information; 

2) Approve the updated Appendix outlined within this report, which relate to the financial operations of 

the Middlesex-London Health Unit to go to Governance Committee for final review; and 

3) Approve staff to immediately begin using the reduced bid period if issuing bids electronically. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background 
 

In March 2019, the Board of Health approved a revised Procurement Policy G-230 which underwent a 

comprehensive legal review and incorporated terms to be compliant with federal trade agreements. Refer to 

Report No. 003-19GC. 

 

Policy Review 
 

The Middlesex-London Health Unity Protocols were adjusted to increase the tendering period to 40 days in 

order to become compliant with the trade agreements. However, upon further review of the Canada Free 

Trade Act (CFTA) and the Comprehensive Economic and Trade Agreement (CETA) the bid period can be 

reduced if it is completed electronically.  

 

Details of the bid posting periods are listed below:  

   
1. CFTA  

a. No minimum posting time required, however postings must be for a reasonable period of 

time for vendors to prepare and submit responsive tenders  

b. Compliance with internal policies for posting periods 

  

2. CETA  

a. Open procurement opportunities must be posted for a minimum of 40 calendar days  

b. bid posting times can be reduced:  

i. By 5 days if bids are posted electronically 

  

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2016-11-17-report-018-16-gc.pdf


2019 October 31 -  2  - Report No. 036-19FFC 

 

  

ii. By 5 days if bids are received electronically 

iii. By 5 days if the tender document is posted at the same time as the procurement 

notice 

iv. To 10 days if previously published notice of planned procurement (has specific 

requirements to apply this correctly)  

 

As a result, it is recommended to change the Procurement Protocols (Appendix A) to reflect a reduced tender 

period of 25 days if bids are posted, received and notice is provided electronically This will also require a 

change to the protocol to remove the requirement for sealed bids as we move to an electronic bid submission 

process. Changes to this process will improve the flexibility for procurement staff respond to tender requests 

in a timelier manner. 

 

Next Steps  

 

The Finance & Facilities Committee has the opportunity to review the appended revised by-laws and 

policies. 

 

Once the Finance & Facilities Committee is satisfied with its review, the by-laws and policies will be 

forwarded to the Governance Committee for inclusion in the updated governance manual.  

 

This report was prepared by Healthy Organization Division. 

 

 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

 

http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-10-31-report-036-19-ffc-appendix-a.pdf


 
 
 

MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
GOVERNANCE MANUAL 

 
SUBJECT: Procurement POLICY NUMBER: G-230 
SECTION: Financial and Organizational 

Accountability 
PAGE:  1 of 2 

 
IMPLEMENTATION: February 21, 2008 APPROVAL: Board of Health 
SPONSOR: MOH / CEO SIGNATURE:  
REVIEWED BY:  Finance and Facilities 

Committee 
DATE:  March 21, 2019 

    

 

PURPOSE 
 
To ensure that the Middlesex-London Health Unit (MLHU) obtains the best value when purchasing 
goods, or contracting services. 
 
To ensure MLHU procurement processes and decisions are open, transparent and fair, and 
comply with obligations set out in the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS) and relevant trade 
agreements.  
 
POLICY 
 
The protocol (Appendix A) prescribed in this policy shall be followed to make a contract award or to 
make a recommendation of a contract award to the Board of Health. This ensures that the MLHU 
procures the necessary quality and quantity of goods and/or services in an efficient, timely and 
cost effective manner, while maintaining the controls necessary for a public agency. 
 
The policy encourages an open and competitive bidding process for the acquisition and disposal of 
good and/or services and the objective and equitable treatment of all vendors.  
 
The policy also ensures the best value is attained for MLHU. This may include, but not be limited 
to, the determination of the total cost of performing the intended function over the lifetime of the 
task, acquisition cost, installation, disposal value, disposal cost, training cost, maintenance cost, 
quality of performance and environmental impact.  

 

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND STANDARDS 
 
Ontario Public Health Standards 
Canadian Free Trade Agreement 
Canada-EU Comprehensive Economic and Trade Agreement 
Ontario-Quebec Trade and Cooperation Agreement 

 
  

MilneE
Text Box
Appendix A to Report No. 036-19FFC



 
 
 

MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
GOVERNANCE MANUAL 

 
SUBJECT: Procurement POLICY NUMBER: G-230 
SECTION: Financial and Organizational 

Accountability 
PAGE:  2 of 2 

 

RELATED POLICIES 
 
G-200 Approval and Signing Authority 
G-220 Contractual Services 

 
REVISION DATES (* = major revision): 
 
2008-02-21 
2019-03-21* 
 

 


























































































	2019-10-31-ffc-agenda.pdf
	2019-09-05-ffc-meeting-minutes
	2019-10-31-report-033-19-ffc
	2019-10-31-report-033-19-ffc-appendix-a
	2019-10-31-report-034-19-ffc
	2019-10-31-report-035-19-ffc
	2019-10-31-report-035-19-ffc-appendix-a
	G-200 Approval & Signing Authority Policy 2019-10-24.pdf
	G-200 App A - Financial Signing Authority 2019-10-24
	G-200 APP B
	G-220 Contractual Services 2019-10-11
	G-220 APP A MLHU Contract Review Checklist 2019-10-11
	G-250 Reserve and Reserve Funds Policy
	G-250 App A - MLHU Reserves  Reserve Funds

	2019-10-31-report-032-19-ffc-appendix-a.pdf
	032-19FFC Appendix A Q3 Variance.pdf
	032-19FFC Appendix A2 Q3 Variance




